
snovoa
Typewritten Text











Page 1

snovoa
Typewritten Text
1G



Page 2



Page 3

snovoa
Typewritten Text



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

July 10, 2012 
 4 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

          
 

              

1. Opening     

A. Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 4:06 P.M. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Dietch, Vice Mayor Karukin, Commissioner Kligman and Commissioner 
Olchyk.   
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chief of Police David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

 
2. Introduction – General Preview of Special Meeting – Roger M. Carlton, Town 

Manager 
Roger M. Carlton spoke about the different Power Point presentations that were going to 
be presented to the Town Commission. 

 
3. Citizen Survey–Vice Mayor Michael Karukin  

Vice Mayor Karukin spoke about the items that he included in a survey that went out 
electronically to more than 400 people and had a response of nearly 25 percent.  He 
spoke about the results of the survey that he put through survey Monkey. 

 Commissioner Olchyk suggested that next time Vice Mayor should get the Mayor’s email 
addresses and try to reach more Town residents. 

 Commissioner Kligman thanked the Vice Mayor for taking the time to put the survey 
together. 

 
4.   Information Resultant from the June 19, 2012 Budget Workshop: 
   

A. Recommended Summer Studies and Other Actions  
The Mayor stated that a vote on each recommended summer study and other 
actions would be taken. 

 
 

Page 4

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3A



Minutes 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

July 10, 2012 
 
 

2 

 
 

- Five-Year Financial Plan Update 
Commissioner Kligman spoke about her interest in enhancing financial planning 
and best practices and as an elected official,  she would like the Town to have a 
financial plan. 
Vice Mayor Karukin stated that he is in favor of having a financial plan and 
setting benchmarks. 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to direct the Administration to update the  5 
Year Financial Plan with benchmarks.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 

- Organizational Location of IT Function to Finance Department 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to move the IT function to the Finance 
Department.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all 
voted in favor. 

- Solid Waste Rate Study for Multiple Commercial Small Tenant Buildings 
Downtown 
Mayor Dietch made a motion to direct the Administration to prepare a summer 
study on this issue.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman 
and all voted in favor. 

-  Alternate Collection Process for Solid Waste 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton provided a brief explanation. 
Commissioner Kligman spoke about the level of service that Surfside residents 
are used to and what they want their tax monies to be spent on. 
Vice Mayor Karukin expressed his opposition to this summer study. 
The Mayor made a motion to proceed with an analysis for Solid Waste collection 
alternate procedures in the single family neighborhood.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Kligman.  The motion passed 3-1 with Vice Mayor 
Karukin voting in opposition. 

- Cost Recovery from Developers for Legal and Planning and Zoning Costs 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to direct the Administration to study this 
issue.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all voted 
in favor. 

- Outside Legal Costs Computation 
Vice Mayor Karukin stated that there is no need to do this study as the Town 
Commission has already agreed to adjust the budget to meet increased demands 
on the Town Attorney’s Office. 
Everyone agreed with the Vice Mayor. 
No summer study will be conducted on this item 

- Calvin, Giordano & Associates review of Contractual Required Scope of 
Work Services in Relation to Town Provided Services 
Town Manager, Roger M. Carlton explained that a question came up during the 
June 19, 2012 Commission Workshop as to whether or not any of the CGA’s 
work budgeted is duplicative work done by Staff.  After reviewing the contract, 
the Manager stated that there is no duplication of work.  His conclusion is that the 
Town is getting excellent value.  
Vice Mayor Karukin spoke about items that he thought were under the 2007 CGA 
agreement.  He realized that the master agreement he was looking at was an old 
version.   

Page 5



Minutes 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

July 10, 2012 
 
 

3 

 
 

Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner from CGA stated that certain services were 
originally in the contract but as the Vice Mayor stated there was never a work 
order authorizing CGA to do Code Compliance. 
After some discussion, no summer study will be conducted on this item. 

- Employee Educational Assistance Program 
Commissioner Olchyk stated that there is no reason to spend additional money on 
this and that this year some of the employees received salary increases. 
Commissioner Kligman agreed. 
Vice Mayor Karukin stated that the Town should not move forward on this item. 
No summer study will be conducted on this item. 

- Executive Department Additional Support 
Commissioner Olchyk opposed this item. 
Commissioner Kligman opposed this item. 
Vice Mayor Karukin stated there is nothing to study. 
No summer study will be conducted on this item 

- Customer Response Management System 
Mayor Dietch spoke in favor of this item which would keep a record of citizens 
requests and how these requests are handled. 
Vice Mayor Karukin asked Duncan Tavares TEDACS Director if this item was a 
component to the e-City services contract.  The response was affirmative.  He also 
asked if in one year the Town didn’t want the services any more, if they could 
opt-out.  The answer was negative. 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to keep this item in the budget.   
Commissioner Kligman stated that they will be looking at millage rate different 
scenarios and even the need for cut backs.  She thought it was premature to vote 
to keep this item on the budget at this time when they will be looking at different 
scenarios.    
Vice Mayor Karukin asked if the charge will be a one-time fee or an annual fee.  
Duncan Tavares TEDACS Director will find out and get back to the Commission 
with a response. 
This item will come back during the August 15, 2012 meeting. 

- Dog Park Study 
Commissioner Kligman stated that she is not against the Dog Park but her 
concerns are more towards the neighbors and how they feel about the Park. 
Ann Finley spoke in favor of the Dog Park and expressed her wish to be able to 
have a park where neighbors could take their dogs while having a sense of 
community. 
The Manager explained some of the things that would be analyzed during the 
summer study. 
Vice Mayor Karukin explained his concerns, but he will support the study 
component of this item.  
A Biscaya Avenue resident (name unknown) spoke in favor of the Dog Park 
Joseph Corderi spoke in favor of the Dog Park. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to move forward with the study.  The 
motion received a second from Vice Mayor Karukin and all voted in favor. 

- Community Garden Budget Allocation of $2,000 

Page 6



Minutes 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

July 10, 2012 
 
 

4 

 
 

Melissa Moonvest, President of the Community Garden organization, spoke about 
the Community Garden and the members would like to add three more plots and 
insurance with the $2,000. 
Vice Mayor Karukin made a motion to keep the $2,000 in the budget.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 
Commissioner Olchyk was absent. 

- Building Permit Revenues vs. Long-term Recurring Revenue Streams 
(Impact of New Ad-Valorem and Resort Taxes from In-fill) 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton presented the item to the Town Commission 
and showed Power Point slides illustrating how three years of increased building 
permit revenue would be more than exceeded by permanent revenue increases 
from resort and ad valorem taxes. 
Commissioner Kligman asked how the Town is defining “New Buildings”. 
Town Manager, Roger M. Carlton explained that it will be new construction 
meaning that full credit is received in additional tax revenue.  

- Equity Within Range for Long-term Non-bargaining Unit Town Employees 
(from compensation/classification study) 
No summer study will be conducted on this item.  

B. Comparison of Building Permit Revenue for 10 Fiscal Years in Relation to 
Recurring Ad Valorem and Resort Tax Revenue  
Item discussed under “Building Permit revenues vs. Long-term Recurring 
Revenue Streams (Impact of new Ad-Valorem and Resort Taxes from In-fill) 
item. 

C. General Fund Personnel Cost Increase for FY12/13 Proposed Budget Over 
the FY 11/12 Projected Budget  
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton presented the item. 
No summer study will be conducted on this item. 

D. Five Year Funded and Proposed Town-Wide Positions Including Annual 
Cumulative Changes  
No summer study will be conducted on this item. 

 
Commissioner Kligman spoke about Channel 77. She would like the Town 
Manager to conduct a study on the logistics and cost for providing programs on 
Channel 77 to the residents.  A summer study will be prepared and discussed with 
the new IT/Telecommunications Committee. 
 

5. Town Commission Discussion of Remainder of FY 12/13 Proposed Budget Not   
Discussed During the June 19, 2012 Budget Workshop  

 Commissioner Olchyk had questions on the Parks and Recreation Personnel Complement 
Chart on page 76 of the proposed FY 2012/2012 Budget.  Tim Milian responded to her 
concerns. 

 Commissioner Kligman asked about the line item “Special Pay” on page 77 and on some 
of the other Departments budgets.  She was informed that the “Special Pay” line item is 
for longevity pay throughout the budget. 

Page 7



Minutes 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

July 10, 2012 
 
 

5 

 
 

 Vice Mayor Karukin will not support the Branding Initiative for $20,000 on page 84. 
 Commissioner Kligman asked why the Unemployment Compensation line item on page 

86 increased by $30,000.  Town Manager Roger M. Carlton explained that it was there in 
case a change occurs on the Solid Waste service delivery methodology. 

 Commissioner Olchyk questioned the Manager on the proposed Support Clerk for the 
TEDACS Director on page 100.  The Manager explained the duties that the position will 
provide to this department.   

 Town Manager Roger M. Carlton spoke and explained each of the funds and answered 
questions posed by the Commission. 

 Commissioner Kligman asked to add a Summer Study to determine how the roll-back 
millage rate of 5.0635 could be reached.  The Administration was directed to add this to 
the Summer Studies. 

 
       6.   Public Comments 

Mayor Dietch invited the public to speak on any of the items discussed. 
Former Vice Mayor Joe Graubart spoke about the Surf-Bal-Bay PAL program and the 
benefits that this program brings to the children.  He would like the Town to make this a 
summer study if possible. 
The Chief stated that when he first became Chief, the Town was funding the program 
with $10,000 from Forfeiture Funds.   The Police Department does not have $30,000 
from this source to participate in the program at this point. 

 Commissioner Kligman made a motion to do a summer study on this item.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 

 Mrs. Barbara Cohen commended the Chief of Police David Allen and Ft. Lauderdale 
Police Officer Heather Lee for a quick police response. 

 Ms. McLaughlin spoke about the Tourist Bureau and new initiatives that the Board is 
working on. 

 
      7.  Adjournment  

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned 
at 7:07p.m. 

 
 

Accepted this ____day of _____________, 2012 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 8



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

July 17, 2012 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

          
 

1. Opening     

A. Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:07 P.M. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  Vice 
Mayor Karukin, Commissioner Kligman and Commissioner Olchyk.  Mayor Dietch 
was absent due to a death in the family. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chief of Police David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
None 
 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Lynn Dannheisser Town Attorney deferred Mayor Dietch’s Item 9C, added an Item 
9F to introduce Ms. Miriam Maer who will be acting as Town Attorney in her 
absence. 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton added Item 9G – Candidate Forum/Debate and 
introduced a resolution attached to Points of Light 9 (95th Street-end). 
Commissioner Olchyk pulled item 1, page 38 and item 4, page 40 from the Points of 
Light. 
Commissioner Kligman pulled page 27 of the minutes and item 12, page 42 of the 
Points of Light. 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Vice Mayor Karukin announced the upcoming Town Activities and Events. 

G. Recognition of Ft. Lauderdale Police Officer Heather Lee for Arrest of Surfside 
Felony Subject- David Allen Chief of Police  
Chief David Allen presented Officer Heather Lee from the Ft. Lauderdale Police 
Department with a plaque thanking her for the arrest of Surfside sexual assault 
suspect. 
 

Page 9



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

2 

  
 

H. Recognition of Doris “Dorie” Lurie for her contribution to the Surfside 
Community – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Vice Mayor Karukin presented Doris “Dorie” Lorie with a plaque in recognition for 
her contribution to the Surfside Community. 
Commissioner Kligman read some of Mrs. Lurie’s accomplishment into the record. 
Commissioner Olchyk thanked Doris “Dorie” Lurie and stated that she is the reason 
why she is serving today as a Commissioner. 
Mrs. Lurie thanked the Town Commission and spoke about her years of public 
service as a Town resident. 

I. Officer of the Month for April – Sgt. Jay Matelis and Officer Tammy Campbell– 
David Allen, Chief of Police 
Chief of Police David Allen presented Sgt. Jay Matelis and Officer Tammy Campbell 
with the Police Officer of the Month for April Award for arresting a bank robber.  
Chief David Allen also stated that Officer Campbell is the Officer of the Month for 
Miami Dade County as well for this arrest. 
 

J. Civilian of the Month for May – Parking Enforcement Officer Alain Acosta – 
David Allen, Chief of Police 
Chief of Police David Allen presented Parking Enforcement Officer Alain Acosta 
with the Civilian of the Month Award.  Officer Acosta issued 495 parking citations 
during the month of May. 
 

K. Officer of the Month for June – Officer Jonathan Alvarez- David Allen, Chief of 
Police 
Chief of Police David Allen presented Officer Jonathan Alvarez with the Officer of 
the Month for June Award for arresting a bicycle thief. 
 

L. Recognition of the North Shore Kiwanis 60 Years of Service – Mayor Daniel 
Dietch 
Vice Mayor Karukin presented a plaque to the North Shore Kiwanis for their 60 
Years of Service to the Town of Surfside. 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve the resolution thanking the Kiwanis.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 

Commissioner Kligman presented Psychologist Adrian Michaels to speak on the 
emotional issues that happen when children are bullied.  This item will be before the 
Town Commission later on the Agenda. 
 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings  
 
A. A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, CONSIDERING THE APPLICATION OF 8985 BAY 
DRIVE, TO PERMIT A SIDE SETBACK VARIANCE FROM SECTION 90-45 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW A 15.9 FOOT SIDE 

Page 10



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

3 

  
 

SETBACK VARIANCE ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE PROPERTY AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser read a preliminary statement at the beginning of 
the quasi-judicial public hearing and announced the particular agenda item. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa confirmed that the advertisement requirements 
were met for the quasi-judicial hearing. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa swore in everyone that wished to speak on the 
quasi-judicial hearing. 
Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner presented the item and provided the Commission with 
the Staff recommendation. 
Vice Mayor Karukin opened the Public hearing. 
No one wished to speak on the item and Vice Mayor Karukin closed the public 
hearing. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve the resolution.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 
 

3.  Consent Agenda (Set for approximately 7:30 p.m.) 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda less the items that 
were pulled.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in 
favor. 

 
            *A.  Minutes -   June 12, 2012 – Regular Commission Meeting   

Commissioner Olchyk asked to correct the spelling for Ms. Norma Parron’s name on 
page 30 of the June 12, 2012 Minutes.   

         Commissioner Kligman asked to add language to the June 12, 2012 Minutes on page 
30, item 4A1 to reflect her comment “as long as the FOP is ok with it and the item 
does not need impact bargaining”. 

 
B. Budget to Actual Summary as of April 30, 2012 – Roger M. Carlton, Town     

Manager  
Passed on consent 
 

            *C. Town Manager’s Report (Points of Light) – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  
  Item 1 – Commissioner Olchyk wanted to clarify and stated on the record that she 

did not want a commitment to purchase benches unless there are available sponsors.   
  Item 4 – Commissioner Olchyk asked the Town Manager not to tie the short term 

rentals to the Junior Code Compliance Officer position offered for the FY 2012-2013 
budget.  After a short discussion Commissioner Kligman asked Code Compliance 
Director Joe Damian to come back during the August Commission meeting with 
specifics as to the short term rentals. 

  Item 9 – Town Manager, Roger M. Carlton explained that this item has appeared 
eleven (11) times in the Points of Light and he recommends a resolution to approve 
funding for Bermello Ajamil in compliance with Commissioner Kligman’s request 
that was passed during the June 12, 2012 Town Commission meeting.  
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve.  Commissioner Olchyk seconded 
the motion and all were in favor.  

Page 11



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

4 

  
 

  Item 12 – Commissioner Kligman asked for an update on the FEMA flood 
insurance.  Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser gave the Town Commission an 
update on this item. 

 
            *D.  Town Attorney’s Report – Lynn M. Dannheisser, Town Attorney 
                    Passed on Consent 
  *E.  Projects Progress Report – Calvin Giordano and Associates, Inc.  
                    Passed on Consent 
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept all the items discussed.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 

 
     4.  Ordinances  

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing) 

1. FY12 Capital Improvement Element Update – Sarah Sinatra, 
Town Planner  

   
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT WITHIN THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 163.3177, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, 
INCLUSION IN THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.   
 
Sandra Novoa Town Clerk read the ordinance by title. 
Sarah Sinatra Town Planner spoke on the item.  
Vice Mayor Karukin opened the public hearing.  No one wished to speak on the item 
and the public hearing was closed. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all were in favor. 
 

B. First Readings Ordinances 
 
1.   Amended Legislation to Planning & Zoning/Design Review Board 

Requirements – Lynn Dannheisser, Town   Attorney  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90-15 
“MEMBERSHIP/QUORUM, MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, 
OFFICERS, TERMS OF OFFICERS, VACANCIES, GENERAL 
REGULATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS, EXPENDITURES, 
INDEBTEDNESS”; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 

Page 12



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

5 

  
 

FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Sandra Novoa Town Clerk read the ordinance by title. 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser presented the item to the Commission and 
offered to bring back a more comprehensive plan during the September 2012 
Town Commission meeting. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve.  Motion received a second by 
Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 
 

2.  Fence Ordinance – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” AND 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-56.1-4 “FENCES, WALLS, 
AND HEDGES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

  
 Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk read the ordinance by title. 

Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner presented the item. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve.  Motion received a second 
from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 
  

3. Adopt an Ordinance Governing Height of Ceiling and other Requirements 
in Parking Facilities with Elevator Lifts – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
Page 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90-77 “OFF STREET 
PARKING REQUIREMENTS” TO PERMIT MECHANICAL PARKING 
LIFTS TO BE COUNTED AS REQUIRED PARKING SPACES SUBJECT 
TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  
 
Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk read the ordinance by title. 
Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager presented the item. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 

 
 
 

Page 13



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

6 

  
 

     5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 
  

A. Proposed Ad-Valorem Budget Millage for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 - Donald Nelson, 
Finance Director  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, DETERMINING A PROPOSED OPERATING 
MILLAGE RATE, DETERMINING THE CURRENT YEAR ROLLED-BACK 
RATE; ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE FOR THE FIRST 
AND SECOND PUBLIC BUDGET HEARINGS AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 
DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO FILE SAID RESOLUTION WITH THE 
PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PURSUANT TO THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE RULES AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE STATE 
OF FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton presented the item. 
Commissioner Kligman expressed her concerns in using reserves to lower the millage 
rate. 
Commissioner Olchyk expressed the same concerns. 
Vice Mayor Karukin asked if part of the reserves were monies carried over from 
previous years.   
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton responded in the affirmative. 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser asked for a short recess to discuss with Ms. Miriam 
Maer what vote was necessary to set the millage rate since one of the members of the 
Town Commission was absent and one seat was vacant. 
   
Vice Mayor Karukin called for a recess at 9:20 p.m. 
The Town Commission convened at 9:30 p.m. with all three members present. 
 
Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser stated that a majority vote was sufficient in this 
resolution. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve.  Vice Mayor Karukin seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 2-1 with Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 
 

B. Charter Review Ballot Question – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA  AMENDING  THE TOWN CHARTER TO PROVIDE 
REQUISITE BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR SUBMISSION TO ELECTORS; 
PROVIDING FOR COPIES OF THE CHARTER AMENDMENT TO BE 
AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION; PROVIDING FOR THE TOWN 
CLERK TO UTILIZE THE SERVICES OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CHARTER; ACCEPTING THOSE CHARTER PROVISIONS APPROVED BY 

Page 14



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

7 

  
 

A MAJORITY OF THE VOTERS ON NOVEMBER 6, 2012 ACCORDING TO 
OFFICIAL RESULTS;  AMENDING THE TOWN CHARTER TO  ADD A 
PREAMBLE AND CITIZEN’S BILL OF RIGHTS; AMENDING ARTICLE VI. 
SECTION 105 GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTIONS OF COMMISSION 
MEMBERS; ARTICLE IX. SECTION 128 MANDATORY CHARTER 
REVIEW; AND ARTICLE I. SECTION 4 GENERAL POWERS OF TOWN; 
PROVIDING FOR REPEALER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO AMEND AND CODIFY THE TOWN 
CHARTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ELECTION RESULTS AND THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION INTO THE TOWN 
CHARTER AND CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser presented the item to the Commission. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion for discussion purposes.  Commissioner 
Olchyk seconded the motion. 
Vice Mayor Karukin expressed his concerns with an item that deals with the 
vacancy in candidacy because of the complexity of the item.   He explained that it is 
his preference to not put Item 2 on the ballot or just simplify it by using the 
language in item E which said that if there is an issue that does not fit within the 
Charter, the Commission can create an ordinance to deal with the particular 
situation. 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton recommended pulling Item 2 off the ballot and 
placing three (3) items on the November 2012 ballot and dealing with item 2 under 
Charter Review. 
Commissioner Olchyk expressed that it was her understanding that the reason that 
this item was brought in front of the Commission was specifically to address Item 
2. 
Vice Mayor Karukin explained that there is no pressing issue at the moment that the 
Town must place that item on the ballot. 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to place Item 1, 3 and 4 on the November 
2012 ballot.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Kligman and all 
voted in favor. 
 

C. Renewal of Voluntary Cooperation Mutual Aid Agreement with the South 
Florida Money Laundering Strike Force – David Allen, Chief of Police  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE VOLUNTARY COOPERATION 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA AND SOUTH FLORIDA LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

Chief David Allen presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 

Page 15



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

8 

  
 

 
D. Interlocal Agreement for NPDES Co-Permittee in Permit No. FLS000003-003 – 

Bill Evans, Public Works Director  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN ALL CO-PERMITTEES NAMED 
IN NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 
PERMIT NO. FLS000003-003 AND MIAMI-DAE COUNTY, AND ALSO 
BETWEEN ALL COPERMITTEES PROVIDING FOR IDENTIFICATION 
AND CONTROL OF POLLUTANT DISCHARGES IN SHARED MUNICIPAL 
SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEMS AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 
 
 
 

E. Approve a Resolution Accepting a Run-off Election– Roger M. Carlton, Town 
Manager  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA ACCEPTING A SPECIAL RUN-OFF ELECTION IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE TOWN CHARTER; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND 
TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE ANY NECESSARY ACTION AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton presented the item and explained that in the event 
that there is a tie during the August 28, 2012 Special Election a run-off election will be 
scheduled for Tuesday, September 11, 2012. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve for discussion purposes.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk. 
Commissioner Kligman asked that if there was a cost in case of a run-off election.  
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton responded affirmatively that the cost would be 
approximately $15,000 - $20,000. 
There being no further discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 
 

F. Expenditure of Forfeiture Fund – David Allen, Police Chief  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2011/2012 
POLICE CONFISCATION FUND EXPENDITURE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$15,000 FROM THE FORFEITURE FUND TO PURCHASE THIRTY 
FIREARMS FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT.   
 

Page 16



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

9 

  
 

Chief of Police David Allen presented the item to the Town Commission.  The 
$15,000 will be used to replace the Department’s firearms. 
The Chief explained that the Town will try to return the old firearms to get a 
rebate/credit. 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 
 

G.  Accepting Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT) Matching Funds Safety 
Grant – Tim Milian, Park and Recreations Director  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING A GRANT WITH THE FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST (“FMIT”) FOR MATCHING FUNDS TO 
RESURFACE THE PARKS AND RECREATION COURTS AND SAFETY 
TRAINING FOR STAFF. 
 
Tim Milian presented the item to the Town Commission. 
Commissioner Kligman asked what the total amount of the grant was and about the 
matching funds.  Tim Milian stated that the Town will receive $5,000 and the Town 
has to match it with $5,000 already allocated in the Parks and Recreation Department 
budget. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 
 

  
      6.  Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)   

Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  Public comment on agenda 
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission. 
 
Alan Gorme spoke about the possibility of reducing the trash and garbage services to 
three times a week in the single family neighborhood. 
Eli Tourgeman announced his candidacy for the August 28, 2012 Special Town Election. 
Joe Graubart spoke about the FEMA flood insurance and suggested getting information 
as to why the discount was lost to educate everyone and not let this happen again. 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
 Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may 
 request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from  
the consent agenda and discussed separately. 
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 
 

Page 17



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

10 

  
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 
 
A. Deferral of Certain Items if a Commissioner is Absent- Commissioner Marta 

Olchyk  
Commissioner Olchyk stated that the one month that she missed the Commission 
meeting was because she was visiting her family.  She stated there was an item of 
great concern that dealt with additional costs for certain  positions and everyone on 
the Town Commission knew that these items were very important to her.  She was 
very upset that these items were presented knowing she wasn’t able to attend and 
knowing that if she was present she would have voted against them in order to avoid 
this from happening.  She suggested that in the future whenever a Commissioner is 
aware that another will not be present, the item should be deferred as a courtesy if it is 
related to funding and or any controversial item.  To prove her point, the Mayor asked 
to defer this item because he was not going to be present and she will make a motion 
to postpone this item until next month.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Kligman and all voted in favor. 
Item was deferred 
 

B. Public Information Campaign for Charter Amendment Election- Roger M. 
Carlton, Town Manager  
 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton presented the item. 
Commissioner Kligman made a motion authorizing the Town Manager to come back 
during the August 15, 2012 Town Commission meeting with a budget and a plan for 
an educational campaign not to exceed $20,000.  The motion received a second from 
Vice Mayor Karukin.  The motion passed 2-1 with Commissioner Olchyk voting in 
opposition. 
 

C. Report on PACE Program – Mayor Daniel Dietch  
Item was deferred 
 

D. Resort Tax Audit Initial Summary – Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director  
 
Duncan Tavares TEDACS Director presented the report to the Town Commission. 
 

E. Discussion Regarding Zero-Tolerance Policy for Bullying in Town and 
Community Facilities – Commissioner Michelle Kligman  
Commissioner Kligman introduced the item and presented a draft resolution. 
She shared some statistics that were not limited to the State of Florida.  
Vice Mayor Karukin provided some feed back to Commissioner Kligman.  Although 
he appreciates the intent of the item, he is not in agreement with the “Zero Tolerance” 
part of the resolution because not all situations are clear.  He is not in support of the 
Town obligation as to enforcement.  He is not in agreement with the expense of 
signage part of the item.  He thinks it lacks specifics as to staffing, cost estimates and 
any idea of collaborating with other communities.  He suggested that maybe this item 
should be discussed with the Parks and Recreation Committee. 

Page 18



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2012 
 
  

11 

  
 

Commissioner Olchyk stated she was not in favor of any expenditures related to this 
item. 
Commissioner Kligman will incorporate some of the feedback and bring it back to the 
Parks and Recreation Committee. 
 
 

Additional Items 
 
 
Item 9F – Introduction of Acting Town Attorney, Miriam Maer – Lynn 
Dannheisser, Town Attorney 
 
Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser introduced Miriam Maer.  Ms. Maer will be 
Acting Town Attorney for Ms. Dannheisser during the month of August while she is 
on vacation. 
 
Item 9G – Candidate Forum/Debate – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
 
Town Manager Roger M. Carlton spoke about the Mayoral forum that was held by 
the League of Women Voters.  He would like direction regarding a Candidate Forum 
approximately ten days before the Special Election.   
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve.  Commissioner Kligman seconded 
the motion and all voted in favor. 

      
 
      10. Adjournment  

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned 
at 10:56p.m. 

 
 

Accepted this ____day of ______________, 2012 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 19

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 20

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3B

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 21



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
August 15, 2012 

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 
POINTS OF LIGHT 

After Action Items 
 
 

1 
 

 
1.  Downtown Vision Project 
 
Current Status: Due to a summer hiatus, the next Downtown Vision Advisory Committee (DVAC) 
meeting will occur on Wednesday, October 24, 2012.  
 
The following is a revised tentative schedule as the Town proceeds with forming a Business 
Improvement District (BID):  
 
August / September 2012:  
Outreach to Downtown property owners and business owners and the formation of a Steering 
Committee.  Commissioner Kligman has sent a letter to Downtown property owners and tenants to 
begin to move this process forward (Attachment ). 
 
Resolution of the following issues: 
 
- Town Commission and Town Administration authority vis a vis the Board of the BID  
- Property owners’ equity issues in relation to the manner for calculating the assessment 
- Commitment of  base level Town services 
- BID commitment to a marketing and commercial real estate consultant and formation of databases 
- Relationship of the BID to the Downtown Business Association 
 
October 2012: 
Draft Ordinance to DVAC 
 
November / December 2012:  
Ordinance to Town Commission for two readings 
 
Spring 2013:  
Referendum of Downtown Property Owners regarding BID formation  
 
The Fiscal Year 12/13 Budget includes $25,000 for a BID formulation expert to facilitate this process. 
This expenditure is also supported by DVAC. 
 
Town Staff, with unanimous DVAC’s support, is recommending a complete review of the Town’s Sign 
Ordinance. Technical support for a comprehensive sign ordinance is also a proposed expenditure in the 

Page 22

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3C



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

2 

 
 

Fiscal Year 12/13 Budget ($15,000) due to the extensive and involved scope of work and public 
outreach needed.  This work is beyond the basic scope of the Calvin, Giordano and Associates 
agreement.  Staff is investigating the possibility of utilizing other existing sign ordinances to reduce 
this cost. 
 
The Fiscal Year 12/13 Budget also includes proposed expenditures for the following successful DVAC 
initiatives: 
 
- The purchase of the additional news racks at $10,000 
- The installation of six additional benches funded at $11,000, if these items are not sponsored by 

businesses 
 
These items, along with a Facade Improvement proposal for $25,000, represent the Town’s proposed 
budgetary commitment to DVAC initiatives that have been fully vetted and supported by the 
Committee members. 
 
 
 
2. Water, Sewer and Storm Drainage and Collins Avenue Force Main Projects            
             
Current Status:  The project began on August 15, 2011 and is approaching 63 percent 
completion.  All permission slips to install the water tie-ins have been received with the 
exception of a few homes that are not occupied.  700 water services have been replaced, 19,000 
linear feet of water pipes have been installed, 15,000 feet of sewer laterals have been repaired or 
lined, 915 sewer connections have been replaced or repaired, 17,285 linear feet of water main 
have been installed, 17,650 linear feet of sewer main have been lined and 2200 linear feet of 
sewer main point repairs have been completed.  5100 linear feet of storm drainage has been 
installed along with 22 drainage structures, three storm drainage pump stations are currently 
under construction and 92,000 square yards of asphalt has been placed (first lift) on the various 
roads throughout Phase 1 and Phase 2.  We have also had to repair 64 small and 15 major pipe 
breaks since the project started to keep the old system operational.  The new Collins Avenue 
shared sewer force main became operational in April 2012.  Staff is in the process of reviewing 
the feasibility of repairing the existing force main which is a decision that must be made in 
conjunction with Bal Harbour and Miami Beach.  A proposed Interlocal Agreement with Bal 
Harbour will be presented to the Town Commission when the investigation is complete and the 
long term strategy determined. 
 
The State of Florida has approved financing at an interest rate of 2.12 percent to partially replace 
and enhance our current project financing which carries a 4.72 percent rate.  The Administration 
is working with our bond counsel and financial advisor and has completed a third update of the 
TischlerBise (now Black & Veatch) rate study to determine how the partial refinancing will 
impact rates.  We have also met with Regions Bank to inform them that $4.0 million of their loan 
will be paid early.  The partial refinancing of the Regions Bank loan was discussed with the 
Town Commission during the May 8, 2012 meeting and authorization was given to move 
forward with the financial restructuring.  The complete package regarding the history, current 
status and financial parameters of the refinancing appears on the August 15, 2012 agenda. The 

Page 23



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

3 

 
 

Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Citizens Committee met on July 12, 2012 and recommended the 
restructuring.  The closing on the partial refinancing will occur August 24, 2012. 

 
 
 
3.  Tourist/Resort Tax Audit/Certificate of Use/Local Business Tax Receipt/Short Term Rentals 
Programs 
 
Current Status:   
 
Resort Tax Audit: The FY 12/13 Proposed Budget includes funding to complete the initial audits of all 
the remaining downtown businesses that collect the resort tax.  Staff is in the process of selecting a 
smaller number of auditors from last year’s list to ensure uniformity and quality in the audit process. 
 
Certificate of Use (CU) /Local Business Tax Receipt (LBTR):  The multi-program application is on 
track to becoming a “one-stop” process for the business community. This is set to roll out through 
August and September for an October 1, 2012 renewal/compliance date. 
 
Short Term Rentals:   This effort is on hold until the Town Commission reaches closure on the 
additional Code Compliance position proposed in the FY 12/13 Budget, however, Staff is 
investigating the potential for using powerful new data matching software that the Property Appraiser 
is using to catch Homestead Exemption violators to see if it is applicable to resort tax short term rental 
violators. 
 
 
4.  Bus Shelters:  Commissioner Marta Olchyk 
 
Current Status:  Staff and Commissioner Olchyk are working closely with Miami Dade County 
Commissioner Sally Heyman and Miami Dade Transit Authority Director Ysela Llort to ensure 
that the shelters are installed during October 2012.  It is interesting to note that Bal Harbour 
ordered their own shelters without Federal funds and may have them installed before ours. 
 
 
5.  Clean Up/Update/Enhance Town Website Content:  Vice Mayor Michael Karukin 
 
Current Status:  The new website prototype was demonstrated to the Town Commissioners 
individually for respective feedback. Vice Mayor Karukin will provide a verbal report on the new 
website.  The new site will undergo tweaking of its design and functionality abilities before going live 
after Labor Day. While the new site will have access to the entire present website’s information, 
improving the functionality and navigability, as well as the addition of new features such as on-line 
bill payment, will be on-going. Staff completed the first round of training on the new website July 19 -
20, 2012 with another round of training earmarked for August 23, 2012. Also on that date the Town 
Commission will review Customer Response Management platforms at the Second Special Budget 
meeting. Please be prepared to make your appointments to the new IT and Telecommunications 
Committee known at the August 15, 2012 Town Commission meeting. 

Page 24



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

4 

 
 

6.  Bike Rental Station 
 
Current Status:    Two rental stations are now operational. Item completed. 
  
 
7.  Beach Concessions 
 
Current Status: It is now anticipated by County staff that the lease agreement will go before the 
County Recreation and Cultural Affairs Committee in September 2012 and then to the Board of 
County Commissioners in October 2012.  After the lease is approved, the County will offer the 
Town of Surfside a proposed management agreement for the Town’s review. The Town and 
County will have ten months to review and prepare a management agreement for final approval.  
 
 
8.  95th Street End Project 
 
Current Status:  Due to the need to complete the street end project contemporaneously with the 
building construction which began in mid-May 2012, the Administration has moved forward 
with the project for one block only, using Bermello Ajamil (from the approved rotation) in the 
amount of $67,000.  The Town Commission confirmed this on July 17, 2012.  The thematic 
design will be usable for all three blocks should the Town Commission determine to expand the 
project in the future.  The August 15, 2012 Town Commission agenda includes the first design 
concept for review by the Town Commission. 
 
 
9.  Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) - program to retrofit existing residential and 
commercial buildings for energy efficiency:  Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Current Status:  This program allows existing buildings to be retrofitted for energy efficiency 
with the cost funded from a loan pool authorized by the State of Florida and funded by Barclay’s 
Capital. The low interest loans are repaid from a long term assessment on the property.  There 
are no guarantees provided by the Town of Surfside.  A report from the Town Attorney will be 
provided during the September 19, 2012 Town Commission agenda. 
 
 
10.  FPL/AT&T/Cable Undergrounding Project 
 
Current Status:  The Town Commission allocated funds in the Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage 
project to provide mid-block crossover conduit so that a future undergrounding project would not 
have to break the pavement.  Staff is working with FPL and other utilities to complete their study 
of the cost of undergrounding Town-wide. A preliminary Staff report regarding this project 
should be available in September, 2012. The binding price estimate from FPL will be delivered 
during August, 2012.  It is interesting that this project ranked as a very high priority on a recent 
survey completed by Vice Mayor Michael Karukin.  That survey was discussed by the Town 
Commission during the July 10, 2012 Fiscal Year 12/13 Proposed Budget Special meeting. 
 

Page 25



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

5 

 
 

 
11.  FEMA Flood Insurance Status 
 
Current Status:  The FEMA Community Assistance Visit, which is the necessary step to lower rates, 
was held on March 21 and 22, 2012.   During an exit interview with Prasad Immula of FEMA’s 
Atlanta office, it was learned that information provided by Paul Gioia to the State office was not 
timely forwarded to Atlanta.  That information has subsequently been sent by Paul Gioia directly to 
FEMA in Atlanta.  Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser has retained Ernest Abbott of FEMA Law who 
was the former General Counsel of FEMA in Washington D.C.  The response to FEMA questions is 
extensive and will be submitted in multiple parts.  The Town Commission will be kept aware of 
progress on this complex issue. 
 
 
12.  Bus Stop Pull-in at East Bound 96th Street, West of Abbott Avenue 
 
Current Status:  Due to the heavy traffic on 96th Street, busses do not use the pull-in because it is 
difficult to return to the line of vehicles.  Miami Dade Transit has approved the removal of the bus 
pull-in.  The cost to close the pull-in and add landscaping has become a condition of the proposed 
Development Agreement with Young Israel.  FDOT will fund the cost of closing the pull-in when they 
repave 96th Street throughout the Town of Surfside.  Item complete. 
 
 
 
13.  Options to Mitigate Inadequate Number of Parking Spaces at Multi-family Establishments 
along the Collins Avenue Corridor:  Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Current Status:  The Spaggio Condominium review has been completed and the building has been 
determined to be 16 usable spaces short from its required number of spaces.  This is due to the design 
of the parking facility which makes certain spaces unusable.  Staff is working with the Town Attorney 
to develop an agreement with the Spaggio condominium board to resolve the situation.  The goal is to 
present the agreement to the Town Commission in the Fall. 
 
 
14.  Dog Park: Mayor Daniel Dietch  
 
Current Status: This initiative is being addressed in the Fiscal Year 12/13 Budget with a proposed 
$12,000 allocation - $2000 was directed by the Town Commission to the Community Garden at the 
Budget Special Hearing July 10, 2012. Staff is also investigating grant opportunities through the 
PetSmart Foundation to assist in funding this initiative long term.  A Summer Study on this matter is 
set for Town Commission consideration at the Second Special Meeting on the FY 12/13 Budget 
August 23, 2012.  

  

Page 26



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

6 

 
 

 

15.  Upgrade to Town Hall Elevator 
 
Current Status:  The Town Commission approved the upgrade to the Town Hall elevator at the 
March 13, 2012 Commission meeting.  This was one of the projects included in the Town 
Commission “shovel ready” discussion.  The contractor ThyssenKrupp was selected by the 
Town Commission during the March 13, 2012 meeting.  The elevator project was completed 
prior to the August 14, 2012 Countywide election. 
 
 
16.  Turtle Sculptures - Art in Public Places 
 
Current Status:   The focus this summer will be on securing sponsorship of the turtle sculptures 
and the completion of each one by the various committed artists. One of the turtles has been 
painted by D.L. Watson.  The unveiling of all eighteen turtles and their placement is earmarked 
for Fall 2012. 
 
17.  FDOT Surfside Repaving 
 
Current Status:  There are three repaving projects which will be accomplished by FDOT over 
the next 18 months.  These include (1) Kane Concourse (96th Street) from the Surfside Town 
limits to Collins Avenue;  (2) Collins Avenue from 75th Street in Miami Beach to 97th Street 
and Harding Avenue from 96th Street to 94th Street and (3) Collins Avenue in Bal Harbour from 
97th Street to the Haulover bridge.  The Collins Avenue north project is well underway with the 
first lift of asphalt completed during July, 2012. 
 
 
18.  Jewish Community Services - Memorandum of Understanding (MOU): Mayor Daniel 
Dietch 
 
Current Status:  A revised MOU from Jewish Community Services did not contain any 
substantive changes from the version the Town Commission approved. The only changes related 
to the rolling out of the program (now set for Fall 2012) and an adjustment of their proposed rate 
structure. Item completed. 
 
 
19. Parking Structure Feasibility Study 

Current Status: Rich and Associates has begun work on the study.  Surveys and parking counts 
were implemented during July 2012.  An advisory committee will be established similar to the 
committee for the water/sewer/storm drainage project.  The names we have so far include 
residents Jesse Flax, Ken Arnold and Joe Corderi as well as downtown property owner Shaun 
Grenald and business operator Sergio Castion.  The Town Commission is requested to suggest 
names for the advisory committee as soon as possible. 

 

Page 27



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

7 

 
 

20. Identity and Wayfinding Signage 
 
Current Status:  The low compliant bidder Don Bell Signs, LLC was authorized to begin 
manufacturing the signs per the June 12, 2012 Town Commission approval.  Mock-ups were 
delivered August 2, 2012 and production has been authorized.  The first signs to be installed will 
be on the beach dune crossovers followed by the parking lots and the entrances to Surfside. 
 
 
21. Bal Harbour Shops Expansion Status Report 
 
Current Status:  Recent press and discussions with Stanley Whitman confirm that Bal Harbour 
Shops has completed negotiations with the Church by the Sea.  The members of the Church 
approved the agreement on June 3, 2012.  Staff will monitor developments in this project and 
keep the Town Commission updated with the Points of Light. 
 
In a meeting on June 27, 2012 with Gus Pego, FDOT District Engineer, we were disturbed to 
learn that FDOT’s role in reviewing traffic issues related to such large scale projects has been 
virtually eliminated by the Legislature.  This will make our negotiations with the Whitman’s 
more difficult and greatly supports the decision to have a traffic study completed by CGA as a 
tool to support these negotiations.  The study will be completed during October, 2012 and then 
will be brought to the Town Commission for review. 

 
 
22.  Bay Harbor Islands Agreement with the Miami Dade County Public Library System 

Current Status:  A draft agreement with the County to replicate the Bay Harbor Islands 
payment approach will be presented to the Town Commission at the September 19, 2012 
meeting. 

 

23.  North Force Main/Building Better Communities Bond Program 
 
Current Status:  The Town Commission reviewed a letter jointly signed by the Managers of 
Surfside, Bal Harbour and Bay Harbor Islands during the March 13, 2012 meeting.  Staff was 
given direction to move forward to obtain the $8.5 million included in the Building Better 
Communities bond issue for Bal Harbour and Surfside to build this critical project.  A meeting 
with Deputy County Mayor Jack Osterholt was held April 13, 2012.  While a commitment to 
address the issue was made, nothing happened.  The situation was discussed with Commissioner 
Sally Heyman on April 30, 2012 in a meeting attended by Commissioner Olchyk.  Both Mr. 
Osterholt and Commissioner Heyman were given a report regarding the $29,668,200 paid by the 
three municipalities to Miami Dade County in FY 2011/2012.   A second meeting with WASD 
Director John Renfrow, Budget Director Jennifer Glazer-Moon and Deputy Mayors Alina Hudak 
and Jack Osterholt was held May 10, 2012.  During that meeting a tentative resolution was 
discussed in which Bal Harbour Village would advance the funding for the project to be 
reimbursed with FY 2016/17 Building Better Community bonds.  Interestingly Miami Dade 
officials did not dispute the capacity issue at the Northeast Regional Treatment Plant when Town 

Page 28



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

8 

 
 

Staff suggested that if there were no capacity, a moratorium on development in the entire service 
area would be in order.  Complicating this situation is the proposed Consent Agreement with the 
State of Florida and the Federal EPA.  Staff has reviewed this 93 page draft document and will 
be making several suggestions that enhance the position of wholesale sewage treatment 
customers like Surfside (through Miami Beach).  Staff has also reviewed the MDWSA report 
regarding all the critical repairs needed to repair deferred maintenance.  It is important to note 
that the 163rd Street force main which will carry the Bay Harbor Village/Surfside sewage is not 
included in the report.  There is much more to follow on this project as events unfold. 
 
 
24.  Best Western (Chateau) Property Sale 
 
Current Status:  The Best Western property sale closed on March 27, 2012 in the amount of 
$50 million.  Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser, Town Planner Sarah Sinatra and Town Manager 
Roger Carlton have met with the new owners to discuss their preliminary plans on a number of 
occasions.  The Town Manager and Town Attorney have also met with project architect 
Bernardo Fort-Brescia of Arquitectonica to discuss the need for great sensitivity to the values of 
the Town.  The Design Review Committee (first step of the review process) met on August 2, 
2012 and provided more than 75 comments to the applicant.  The Town Commission will be kept 
aware as this project evolves. 
 
 
25. Scholarship Program 

Current Status: An administrative committee will be formed to create procedures, accompanying 
forms and applications to better manage the program for academic year 2013/2014 and beyond.  The 
work of that committee will be presented to the Town Commission when completed for review and 
will incorporate any recommended changes. 
 
 
26.  Renovations to Parking Lots 
 
Current Status:  The low bid to renovate the Abbott, 95th Street (Shul), 94th Street, Town Hall 
(93rd Street) and Town Hall (Collins) lots came in at $220,000 which is well below the $450,000 
estimated figure.  Renovation has been completed on the two Town Hall lots and the 95th Street 
(Shul) lot for $95,000 and the cost of landscaping added $97,000.  The remaining three lots will 
be kept on hold until after the parking structure feasibility study for these three lots is complete.  
The results of the three initial lot renovations have been quite extraordinary and the new graphics 
will be installed during early September, 2012. 
 
 
27.  Solid Waste and Recycling Bill on the TRIM Notice 
 
Current Status:  Staff attended a briefing with the Miami Dade County Property Appraiser 
regarding this new process on May 3, 2012.  A letter has been prepared in Spanish and English 
that will be mailed with the TRIM notices in late August, 2012 to explain the transition for the 

Page 29



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

9 

 
 

single family residents.  All requirements of Miami Dade County to implement this new process 
have been met.  The proposed rates for FY 12/13 will be the same as FY 11/12.  Item completed. 
 
 
28.  Island Community Initiative Automatic License Plate Reader Project (ALPR)  
 
Current Status:  The Island Community Initiative ALPR Project is a new crime prevention 
program involving the Bal Harbour, Bay Harbor Islands, Golden Beach, Sunny Isles Beach, and 
Surfside Police Departments.  The project will monitor all vehicular ingress and egress into the 
five island Towns with ALPR cameras. Phase 1 of the project will Geo-fence the entrance roads 
to the five communities. The cameras will be installed in north Golden Beach; Sunny Isles at 
192nd Street and Collins Avenue and Sunny Isles Blvd.; the Bay Harbor Islands tollbooths; and 
at 88th Street and Collins Avenue, Harding Avenue, and Byron Avenue in Surfside. Phase 2 of 
the project will allow Towns to add interior ALPR and surveillance cameras to the interior of the 
Geo-fence such as parks, schools, etc.    
 
Dispatchers and police officers in all of the communities will be alerted automatically at police 
stations and on laptops in real time to stolen cars, BOLOs, Amber Alerts, and hot lists. The project 
will also provide inter-agency sharing of investigative intelligence. The server will be shared by all of 
the communities. 

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the participating municipalities appears elsewhere on 
this agenda. The cost of the project will be shared equally by the five municipalities. The Towns will 
piggyback on the Golden Beach contract.  The four other Towns as well as Surfside have committed to 
the project.  Surfside’s cost is $100,000 to become a participant in the project.  Funds will be provided 
from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 

 
29.  Sidewalk Ordinance Implementation 
  
Current Status:   The implementation of this new requirement is on track and will be incorporated 
into the CU/LBTR annual renewal process. Outreach to the business community began the end of July 
2012 when the “one-stop” application process was disseminated.  A meeting is set for August 9, 2012 
with representatives from the FDOT to discuss the lease terms and other items.  An engineering survey 
of the business district sidewalks is underway to establish the areas to be included in the FDOT lease 
agreement and to allow each restaurant to define the boundaries in which it can place tables. The lease 
with FDOT should be on the September 19, 2012 Town Commission agenda for discussion and 
ratification. 
  
30.  Imaging Town Documents 
  
Current Status:  This project is on track.  A new records storage area has been completed in the 
landing area between the first and second floors.  Town Clerk Sandra Novoa has moved Town records 
to that room while eliminating many records in accordance with State Law.  This will allow the 
previously renovated room on the first floor to be used for imaging and storing building plans. New 
procedures have been agreed upon by all individuals involved in the process.  The number of boxes in 

Page 30



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

10 

 
 

storage at Iron Mountain has been reduced to 220 from 749 with the goal of completion by the end of 
October, 2012.  On average, the contents of the boxes are reduced by 85 percent.   
 
 
31.  Street Closing Northbound at 88th Street and Byron Avenue and Right Turn Prohibition at 
Abbott Avenue Westbound to Northbound 
  
Current Status:  After a public meeting and a number of individual discussions, solutions that 
meet the needs of the neighbors have been developed.  Miami Dade County has approved the 
northbound Byron Avenue street closure and work will begin in early August, 2012.  Apparently 
Miami Beach has become concerned over this project and has expressed their concerns to Miami 
Dade County engineers.  Miami Dade and the City of Miami Beach met on August 7, 2012 to 
discuss this.  A verbal report will be made to the Town Commission during the August 15, 2012 
meeting. 
 
 
32.  Surf Club Sale 
  
Current Status:  After years of discussion, the Board of the Surf Club has authorized the sale of 
the property to Fort Capital.  The architect is Kobi Karp.  Preliminary plans include historically 
faithful renovation of the original buildings, new residential on both sides of Collins Avenue, a 
275 room very high end condominium hotel and a parking structure.  The Design Review 
Committee met on July 31, 2012 and presented more than 75 items.  The Town Commission will 
be kept aware of this project as it proceeds. 
  
 
33.  Tourism Strategic Plan 
 
Current Status: An RFP for a Tourism Consultant to produce a Five Year Tourism Strategic Plan, 
along the lines of the Town’s Five Year Financial Plan, was advertised the week of July 19, 2012. This 
initiative is fully funded by the Tourist Bureau with Resort Tax funds. A Mandatory Pre-Submission 
meeting for proposers is set for August 9, 2012 with a submission deadline of September 6, 2012. A 
selection Committee comprised of three staff members and four residents, including two Tourist Board 
members, will review and evaluate the submissions. The recommendation from this Committee will be 
presented to the Tourist Board and, subsequently, to the Town Commission in October, 2012.    

 
34.  Charter Review November Ballot Process 
 
Current Status:  The Town Commission determined to place three Charter Amendments on the 
November 6, 2012 election.  Appearing on this August 15, 2012 Town Commission agenda is a 
recommended public information program.  The Planning and Zoning Board was briefed on the 
Charter Amendment to clarify the density, intensity and height regulations during their June 27, 
2012 meeting. 
  

Page 31



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

11 

 
 

 
35.  The Shul Expansion 
 
Current Status:  An application in sufficient form to start the Design Review Committee 
process has been received.  The date for the initial Design Review Committee meeting has been 
set for August 22, 2012 as Rabbi Lipskar is out of the country.  Staff will keep the Town 
Commission aware as this project evolves. 
 
              

These items have been completed and deleted from the July 2012 Points of Light report 
              
 
3.  Feral Cat and Dog Feces Concerns: Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Current Status:   Meetings were held on June 19, 2012 and June 26, 2012 to implement the 
grant and educate the residents regarding the program. Two more volunteers have signed up for 
the feeding program. The Town is proceeding with scheduling the Meow Mobile quarterly in an 
effort to continue the success of the Trap, Neuter and Release (TNR) Program endorsed by the 
Town Commission. The TNR will be funded solely by the new PetSmart grant. Procedures for 
tracking and quantifying the number of cats treated, as well as controls for invoicing and fund 
disbursement, are being implemented. Over 200 feral cats have been trapped and neutered in 
2012.  Given the long contentious history of the feral cat issue, the Town has finally come 
together with a rational solution that will humanely resolve the problem over time. Item 
completed.   
 
18.  Coastal Partnership Initiative Grant 
 
Current Status:  Unfortunately this grant application in the amount of $30,000 for providing 
improved handicap parking and beach access at the 90th Street beach access point has not been 
funded.  The grant process was extremely competitive and our proposal was not high enough on 
the priority list. Item completed. 

 
33.  Kosher Products at the Community Center Concession Stand: Commissioner Michelle 
Kligman  
 
Current Status:  Staff met with the owner of Shaka Jons to ensure that there will be a mix of Kosher 
foods available for the summer.  These foods will be pre-packaged snack items which will be 
confirmed as Kosher by appropriate authorities. The availability of these products should ensure that 
the no outside food policy does not impact a segment of our community unfairly.  If anyone finds this 
resolution unacceptable, visitors are informed they can eat their own food on the green area or the 
beach and they will be readily readmitted to the pool area.  Item completed. 
 
  

Page 32



Points of Light – After Action Items 
Regular Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2012 
 
 

12 

 
 

 
36.  Community Center Swimming Pool Use by the Shul and Other Religious Institutions 
  
Current Status: This trial program started on June 29, 2012 with the Shul of Bal Harbour. The 
Shul will bring in three groups of thirty kids for an hour and a half on Fridays throughout the 
summer. The fee for this activity is $150 each Friday. The Parks and Recreation Department will 
monitor this activity on a week to week basis to determine the operational impacts.  Item 
completed. 
 
 
37.  The Spanish American League Against Discrimination (SALAD) 
  
Current Status:  Director Armando Arana met with Human Resources Director Yamileth Slate-
McCloud and Town Manager Roger M. Carlton on May 23, 2012 to discuss methods for 
cooperative efforts.  One possibility is a Foreclosure Defense Assistance Program.  SALAD’s 
programs are open to people of all backgrounds.  Item completed. 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

PROJECTS PROGRESS REPORT 

CALVIN, GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES. INC. 

August, 2012 

 
 

1. Planning and Community Development – The Chateau Residences (formerly Best 

Western), the Surf Club and the Shul have all submitted site plan applications for their 

projects. Staff is currently reviewing the plans and is providing comments to the applicants. 

The applications will be scheduled for the Development Impact Committee meeting after 

staff has determined that the plans meet zoning code compliance. Staff is working closely 

with the Administration on the parking structure feasibility study and the potential expansion 

of the Bal Harbour Shops. Staff also presented to DVAC conceptual changes to the Town’s 

Sign Code. Planning staff continues to answer general zoning calls and e-mails from the 

public and to review building permits for conformance with the zoning code.  The planning 

staff receives approximately 80-90 calls for information each month. 

 

2. Website, Information Technology, TV Broadcasts – The Town received three quotes for 

replacement security cameras located in Town Hall, the Police Department and outside Town 

Hall premises. The replacement security camera project was awarded to ATCI 

Communications in the amount of $7,239.50, which was the low bid. The project was 

completed and all cameras are functioning and recording as of July 9, 2012. Also, IT recently 

requested and is awaiting quotes for a new laptop and portable printer for the Code 

Compliance Department. Police radio recording software has been upgraded in an effort to 

incorporate email alert notifications. These alerts are notifying the Dispatch Supervisor, Lt. 

Richard Williams and IT Helpdesk when the system fails. The new upgrade became 

operational on July 16, 2012. The Town will not incur a cost for the software upgrade from 

the software vendor, Replay Systems, Inc. IT staff researched and provided input to 

expansion possibilities for programming displayed on Channel 77.  The IT staff receives 

approximately 300 support requests via phone and email each month.  

   

3. Public Utilities / Engineering – The Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project commenced on 

August 15, 2011 in the southern sector (Phase I) of the City. The project involves water 

main/water service replacements, lining or replacement of the gravity sewer mains and sewer 

lateral replacements, rehabilitation of the sewer pump stations, and improvements to the 

stormwater collection system including three (3) new storm drainage pump stations.  Phase II 

Page 34

snovoa
Typewritten Text
3E



Page 2 

Town of Surfside 
Projects Progress Report 

 

which is the middle area of Town and includes the most complex storm drainage work is 

substantially complete, with work on the private services soon to be completed.  Phase III has 

begun this month, focusing on completing all major construction activities on the Byron 

Avenue corridor prior to the school year.  Phase III should complete the north part of Town 

before the end of the year.  The public information project website continues to be updated 

frequently and receives 15 to 30 views monthly.   

 

Both Surfside and Bal Harbour Village have been utilizing the newly installed Collins 

Avenue force main with success.  Surfside staff and consultants are now in the process of 

meeting with Bal Harbour staff and consultants to decide the most cost effective method for 

evaluation and repair or abandonment of the existing Byron Avenue force main.  A more 

thorough report regarding the condition of the existing Byron Avenue force main will be 

provided in the September 11, 2012 Town Commission meeting. 

 

The Town has received a claim from Ric Man International regarding the sewer main 

cleaning and TV line item.  The claim relates to the amount of work required to properly 

clean the existing sewer main lines which is a necessary step to determine the extent of work 

needed.  CGA and Town staff denied the claim, but the Contractor is requesting additional 

meetings and potentially arbitration to resolve the claim.  Staff continues to work to resolve 

this claim.   

 

CGA continues to assist in the completion of a partial refinancing of the project to reduce the 

interest costs and provide funding for additional utility main replacements and other costs 

within the original scope.  There is a comprehensive status report for the project on the 

August 14, 2012 Agenda.   

 

 

Funding Summary –   

 

Funding Status:                                Amount             Status            Probability 
FDEP Grant    $873,500  In place 100% 

FDEP Grant    $125,000  In place 100% 

FDEP Grant    $100,000  In place 100% 

FDEP State Revolving Fund Loan  $9,312,881  In place* 100% 

BBC Bond     $859,000  In place 100% 

 

                                                        $11,270,381 Total   In Place Funding                         

 

The FEMA/PDM grant which was listed at 10% probability was not awarded. 

 

         

*The Town received the letter to incur costs on October 25, 2011. 

*The Town received the letter stating $9.312MM in available funds for the project on February 

28, 2012. 

*This loan has the potential of $2-$3 Million being forgiven by the State in approximately 3 

years. 

Page 35



Page 3 

Town of Surfside 
Projects Progress Report 

 

 

4. Neighborhood Improvements – CGA Staff completed the traffic computer model of the 

Town’s roadway system as an element of the traffic calming study.  The traffic counts to 

complete the traffic study are scheduled for September (to include school session traffic).  

The counts will be conducted for 2-3 weeks.  After the report is completed, the Town will 

hold public meetings to discuss and receive resident input.  The Town Manager will also 

utilize this study during his discussions with Bal Harbour Village regarding potential mall 

expansion.  The Town Commission determined to defer the additive alternate projects, 

including the traffic calming devices, until the water/sewer/storm drainage project was 

underway for one year to determine if remaining contingency account funding would be 

available.  

 

CGA is presenting the final seawall inspection report on the August 15, 2012 Town 

Commission agenda with the goal of obtaining approval to seek Florida Inland Navigation 

District (FIND) grant funding for necessary seawall repairs.   

 

CGA staff has completed all field work required to obtain laser scan survey information of 

the business district.  CGA staff is now working to complete the legal sketch and descriptions 

which will be completed by August 10, 2012.  This survey and description is an FDOT 

requirement for the sidewalk café lease. 

Page 36



Page 37

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A1



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A2



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49

snovoa
Typewritten Text
4A3



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 54

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5A

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 55

snovoa
Typewritten Text
Attachment "A"

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5B



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5C



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



 

 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FL 
 

 
Bulkhead Inspection 

 
 

Town of Surfside, Miami-Dade County 
 

CGA Project No.: 12-4952 
 
 
 
 
 

July 2012 

 

Prepared by 

 

 
 

David Frodsham, EI 

 

________________________ 

Page 97

snovoa
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "A"



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ............................................................................................................. 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .......................................................................................................... 3 

INTRODUCTION......................................................................................................................... 5 
 Purpose & Scope of Work   …………………………………………………5 

BULKHEAD ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................ 6 
Inventory of Bulkheads Inspected  …………………………………………………6 
 

 Bulkhead 1: Carlyle Ave. & 88th St.  …………………………………………………7 
 Bulkhead 2: Froude Ave. & 88th St.  ………………………………………………..10 
 Bulkheads 3 & 4, 88th St. Bridge to Isla Biscaya ………………………………………………..13 
 Bulkhead 5: End of 88th St. on Isla Biscaya ………………………………………………..15 

Bulkhead 6: Irving Ave. & Bay Drive   ………………………………………………..19 
Bulkhead 7: 90th St. & Bay Drive  ………………………………………………..21 
Bulkhead 8: 92nd St. & Bay Drive  ………………………………………………..23 
Bulkhead 9: 93rd St. & Bay Drive  ………………………………………………..25 
Bulkhead 10: 94th St. & Bay Drive  ………………………………………………..27 
Bulkhead 11: 95th St. & Bay Drive  ………………………………………………..29 
Bulkhead 12: Surfside Park   ………………………………………………..33 

 

SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................. 38 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS & OPINION OF PROBABLE COST ........................................... 39 
 

 
 
 

Page 98



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
I  INTRODUCTION 
 
This report summarizes an inspection performed on municipally owned bulkheads in the Town of 
Surfside and makes recommendations for their repair or replacement. 
 
II INSPECTION  
 
All known municipal bulkheads within the Town of Surfside were examined and assessed for structural 
and aesthetic condition.  This was accomplished via land-side and water-side visual inspections and the 
excavation of tieback rods.  The bulkheads were inspected for washouts, tipping, toe-outs, concrete 
degradation, tieback condition, and other signs of deterioration. 
 
III SUMMARY 
 
Most of the bulkheads owned by the Town are in a state of disrepair and some are failing.  This report 
labels them into the following categories: 
 

1. Severe damage to structural integrity and/or aesthetics: 
a. Bulkhead 1: Carlyle Ave. & 88th St. 
b. Bulkhead 5: End of 88th St. on Isle of Biscaya 
c. Bulkhead 11: 95th St. and Bay Dr. 

2. Moderate damage to structural integrity and/or aesthetics: 
a. Bulkhead 2: Froude Ave. & 88th St. 
b. Bulkhead 7: 90th St. and Bay Dr. 
c. Bulkhead 9: 93rd St. and Bay Dr. 
d. Bulkhead 12: Surfside Park 

 
3. Minor damage to structural integrity and/or aesthetics: 

a. Bulkheads 3 & 4: 88th St. Bridge 
b. Bulkhead 6: Irving Ave. & Bay Dr. 
c. Bulkhead 8: 92nd St. and Bay Dr. 
d. Bulkhead 10: 94th and Bay Dr. 

 
III RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The bulkheads addressed in this study have been in place for an estimated 40+ years.  Based upon 
the estimated usable life of a typical bulkhead, it is recommended that all of the bulkheads be replaced 
except for the two bulkheads located beneath the 88th St. Bridge to Isle of Biscaya, which should be 
repaired.  In so doing, the Town will be able to take advantage of lower shared costs such as mobilization.  
The bulkheads are not failing to a degree that funding cannot be sought over the course of the upcoming 
year to replace them all under the same contract. 

That stated, it is understood that the Town may wish to replace only the bulkheads in the worst 
condition, or make repairs to extend whatever usable life the bulkheads may possess.  As an alternative to 
replacing all of the bulkheads and based upon the categorization described in the summary above, the 
following recommendations are made: 
 

1. Where severe damage to the structural integrity of the bulkhead has been observed, it is 
recommended that the bulkhead be replaced entirely. 

Page 99



2. Where the structural integrity of the bulkhead appears to be in salvageable condition but damage 
is moderate, it is recommended that the bulkhead be either repaired or replaced. 

3. Where the bulkhead exhibits minor cracking or degradation, it is recommended that the bulkhead 
be repaired. 
 

IV  OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 
 
Assuming that the Town chooses to replace all bulkheads within the scope of this investigation, it is 
estimated that approximately $960,000 in construction fees will be needed to complete the construction of 
the required replacements. 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



SECTION ONE 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 
PURPOSE & SCOPE OF WORK 
 
On Tuesday, June 19th, 2012, staff from Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. performed an on-site 

inspection of municipally-owned bulkheads in the Town of Surfside, FL.  The purpose of this inspection 

was to qualitatively evaluate the structural and aesthetic characteristics of the existing bulkheads and 

provide recommendations for maintenance/repair.  Recommendations for repair or replacement of 

bulkheads are based upon conditions that were observed in the field. 

 

It is important to note that every bulkhead within the scope of this inspection is unique.  Bulkheads may 

differ in materials, age, design, dimensions, repairs, quality of workmanship, and many other variables.  

While there are similarities between many of the bulkheads and they may have been originally 

constructed around the same time frame, some have experienced repairs while others have been left to 

deteriorate at differing rates.  

 

This project included coordination with the City in an effort to locate copies of the construction plans for 

the bulkheads.  To date, we have been informed that there are no such plans available.  As a result, no 

firm assessment was made as to the depth of embedment of sheet piles, exact age of bulkheads or dates of 

repairs.  However, observations have been made with regard to visible states of failure and possible 

causes thereof. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



SECTION TWO 
 

INSPECTION 
 

Inventory of Bulkheads Inspected 
 
 
 
 

 
Bulkhead 1:      Carlyle Ave. & 88th St. 
 
Bulkhead 2:      Froude Ave. & 88th St. 
 
Bulkhead 3:      East Side of 88th St. Bridge 
 
Bulkhead 4:      West Side of 88th St. Bridge 
 
Bulkhead 5:      End of 88th St. on Isle of Biscaya 
 
Bulkhead 6:      Irving Ave. & Bay Dr. 
 
Bulkhead 7:      90th St & Bay Dr. 
 
Bulkhead 8:       92nd St. & Bay Dr. 
 
Bulkhead 9:       93rd St. & Bay Dr. 
 
Bulkhead 10:     94th St. & Bay Dr. 
 
Bulkhead 11:     95th St. & Bay Dr. 
 
Bulkhead 12:     Surfside Park 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 102



Bulkhead 1, Carlyle Ave & 88th St. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   49’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 4-7’  
 
Bulkhead Material:      Native Stone with Concrete Cap 
 
 

This native-stone bulkhead is failing.  The bulkhead is comprised of large, porous native stone 

and mortar with a concrete cap (See Photo 1.1).  The bulkhead contains a 36” concrete culvert near its 

midpoint, and the cap above the culvert is cracked (See Photo 1.2). The remainder of the cap appears to 

be in reasonably good condition.  There is a plastic conduit line penetrating the bulkhead toward its west 

end.   

Many of the stones and mortar in the bulkhead have broken away with time.  In no place is this 

more apparent than on the eastern portion of the bulkhead where a 3 foot wide section of geofabric may 

be seen through a hole in the bulkhead where the stones have fallen away (See Photo 1.3).  The geofabric 

appears to be in good condition, and may have been part of a previous repair to reduce erosion through 

the bulkhead. 

There appear to be a few washouts behind the bulkhead where the soil behind the bulkhead has 

escaped through the voids in the stones.  A great deal of shoaling and varying depths can be noted at the 

mudline of the bulkhead on the waterward side, indicating that there has been a deposition of soil there 

over time from seepage through the bulkhead and/or tidal sediments.  There is also some scour near the 

outfall itself.  The bulkhead is quite old, with the geofabric material, cap, and possible tie-back system 

having been added later.  The neighboring bulkheads are also comprised of native stone, so any possible 

repair will have to take that into consideration. 

It is recommended that this bulkhead be replaced entirely.  Replacing the wall with a different 

material will have to take into consideration the joints with neighboring native stone bulkheads. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



 
Photo 1.1: Native Stone Wall 

 

Page 104



 
Photo 1.2: Crack above Concrete Outfall 

 

 
Photo 1.3: Geofabric Witnessed Through Wall 

 
 
 
 

Page 105



Bulkhead 2, Froude Ave & 88th St. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   49’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 5’ 
 
Bulkhead Material:  Monolithic Concrete with Non-Structural 

Asbestos-Concrete Sheets  
 

This concrete bulkhead was formed with two monolithic pours, separated by a cold joint toward 

the bulkhead’s east end (See Photo 2.1).  There are a number of cracks throughout the top of the 

bulkhead.  At some point after the initial construction, asbestos-concrete sheet piles were driven 

immediately in front of the concrete bulkhead, and topped with a small concrete cap (See Photo 2.2).  As 

a result, it is difficult to see the face of the bulkhead to inspect for cracking or other areas of water 

infiltration.  These asbestos-concrete sheets and small concrete cap are very brittle and may be broken 

with little force.   

Being as they are of no apparent structural benefit, it is assumed that the asbestos-concrete sheet 

piles were placed in front of the larger concrete bulkhead to curtail the seepage of soils from behind the 

bulkhead.  The ground behind the bulkhead is very soft and irregularly eroded.  Only recently before the 

field observation was conducted, a large amount of fill was added above the sod in some low lying areas 

in an apparent effort to replace the eroded soils (See Photo 2.3).  All of these observations indicate that 

the soil behind the bulkhead is seeping through cracks in the bulkhead. 

It is recommended that the bulkhead be repaired to prevent soils from washing through the 

bulkhead, or that the bulkhead be replaced entirely.  This bulkhead may be repaired by adding a geofabric 

layer behind the bulkhead and backfilling to inhibit the migration of soils through the bulkhead with 

seepage. 

 

Page 106



 
Photo 2.1: Concrete Bulkhead with Asbestos-Concrete Sheets 

Page 107



 
 

Photo 2.2: Asbestos-Concrete Sheet Piles In Front of Wall 
 

 
Photo 2.2: Recently Placed Imported Fill 

 
 
 

Page 108



Bulkheads 3 & 4, East and West Sides of 88th St. Bridge 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   50’ Each Side 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 5’’ 
 
Bulkhead material:      Concrete Sheets with Concrete Cap and H-Piles 
 

The 88th St. Bridge appears to have been built or repaired more recently than all the bulkheads in 

this study and is marked 1989, indicating the year of its initial construction.  The bridge is affixed on its 

east and west ends to concrete abutments (See Photo 3.1).  Each of these abutments is located behind a 

concrete bulkhead, with the area between each bulkhead and abutment being backfilled with soil and 

cement-filled sacks.   

The caps on the bulkheads under the bridge appear to be relatively new, and there is minimal 

cracking on the concrete sheets.  However, in three locations behind the concrete bulkheads (one on the 

east side, two on the west side), there are deep depressions in the backfill area (See Photo 4.1).  At each of 

these locations, on the bottom of the bulkhead sheets near the mudline, there is a rectangular hole with 

approximate dimensions of 2’ wide by 1’ tall.  It is unknown whether these holes are directly correlated to 

the depressions in backfill witnessed behind them. 

The abutments themselves have weep holes which are used to convey stormwater from behind the 

abutments or other areas to the backfilled area.  It is possible that this stormwater from the bridge deck 

and/or tidal water infiltrating the bulkhead are liquefying the backfill and allowing it to escape through 

the aforementioned holes.  It could also be that settling by the bridge caused these backfilled soils to shift.   

The presence of the bridge above the 88th St. bulkheads complicates their repair or replacement.  

It is unknown whether the bulkheads provide any structural stability to the abutments themselves.  In any 

scenario, the bulkheads should be repaired with geofabric and/or epoxy grout to curtail further soil 

migration, and backfilled to match the existing level of fill elsewhere behind the bulkheads. 

 

Page 109



 
Photo 3.1: Concrete Cap In Front of Abutment with Backfill 

 

 
Photo 4.1: Sunken Area between Concrete Bulkhead and Bridge Abutment 

 
 
 
 

Page 110



Bulkhead 5, End of 88th St on Isle of Biscaya 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   49’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 6-7’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Concrete Sheets, H-Piles, Batter Piles, Concrete 

Cap 
 

This bulkhead, like Bulkhead 1, is in a state of considerable disrepair.  When it was originally 

constructed, the bulkhead was comprised of concrete sheets, H-piles, and a concrete cap.  There is at least 

one tie-back rod that has pulled through the concrete sheet pile (See Photo 5.1) indicating that at some 

point the bulkhead was leaning forward enough to compromise the tie-back system.   

Later on, batter piles and a newer concrete cap were added to laterally support a bulkhead that 

was tipping forward.  The batter piles and cap were installed to provide lateral support to the top of the 

bulkhead, and tilted the bulkhead back toward vertical.  This may have been done to defer the cost of a 

full bulkhead replacement.  Riprap was added to prevent scour along the mudline.   

At least two of the batter piles appear to be exhibiting signs of failure.  The westernmost batter 

pile is tilted at an angle that is not perpendicular to the bulkhead face.  This causes non-axial loading and 

reduces the effectiveness of the batter pile.  It is not known whether the pile was constructed in this 

fashion, or whether the pile shifted as the result of an impact or shifting subgrade. 

At the other end of the same bulkhead, the joint at which the easternmost batter pile connects with 

the cap has corroded to such a point that the steel is entirely exposed and rusted and the concrete that 

should be surrounding it is absent (See Photo 5.2).  This batter pile is not likely providing optimal support 

to the bulkhead. 

Presently, the concrete sheets themselves are highly weathered, (See Photos 5.3, 5.4, 5.5).  The 

concrete binder in the sheets has eroded away, showing loose aggregate in the concrete sheets where the 

bulkhead is exposed to tidal fluctuations.  There is a 12” metal water pipe that enters the wall at its 

midpoint, so any repair would have to make considerations for it. 

It is recommended that this bulkhead be replaced. 

 

Page 111



 
Photo 5.1: Tie Rod Pulled Through Sheet Pile 

 

 
Photo 5.2: Exposed Steel Reinforcement in Batter Pile 

 

Page 112



 
Photo 5.3: Degraded Concrete Sheet Piles 

 
Photo 5.4: Degraded Concrete Sheet Piles 

 

Page 113



 
Photo 5.5: Degraded Concrete Sheet Piles 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



Bulkhead 6, Irving Ave. & Bay Drive 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   47’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 6-7’ 
 
Bulkhead material: Concrete Sheets, H-Piles, Batter Piles, Concrete 

Cap 
 

This bulkhead is similar in type and size to Bulkhead 5, but without the same degree of 

deterioration.  The same batter pile system with a new cap is in place and it is supporting concrete sheet 

piles with H-pile supports, along with the 12” water main, just like the previously Bulkhead 5. 

Unlike the previously mentioned bulkhead, the sheets themselves appear to be in good condition 

and the tieback systems show no signs of failure.  There is some rust bleeding through the concrete that 

should repaired with an epoxy grout and monitored for future degradation.  In two other locations, some 

of the supporting concrete has broken away and exposed the underlying steel.  These locations will need 

to be patched to prevent further corrosion (See Photos 6.1, 6.2).  Some minor soil subsidence can be seen 

behind the wall. 

It is important to note when considering repairing Bulkheads 5 and 6 that there is a 50’ navigable 

waterway between them, so any major repairs would have to take that into consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



 
Photo 6.1: Exposed Steel Reinforcement 

 

 
Photo 6.2: Exposed Steel Reinforcement 

 
 
 
 

Page 116



Bulkhead 7, 90th St. and Bay Dr. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   47’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 6-7’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Interlocking Concrete Sheet Piles with Concrete 

Cap 
 

This bulkhead is comprised of interlocking concrete sheets piles.  The sheets themselves are not 

connected by any H-piles or batter piles but as interlocking sheets sealed with hydraulic cement (See 

Photo 7.1).  The sheets appear to be in good condition.  The area behind the bulkhead is exhibiting sunken 

areas indicative of seepage between the joints, though no such cracks between the joints could be located.  

The sheets themselves fit together somewhat angularly; they are not aligned in parallel as a bulkhead face.  

It is possible that they have twisted over time under lateral stresses, that they became contorted when the 

new cap was installed, or that they were installed as described.  The cap appears to be in good condition.  

There is riprap at the base of the sheets which helps to prevent scour along the toe of the bulkhead. 

Efforts were made to locate a tieback rod on this bulkhead.  An 8’ long trench was dug behind the 

bulkhead to a depth of 4’, but no tie rods were encountered.  No areas of seepage were observed within 

the trenched area behind the wall, though the trench did not traverse the entire length of the wall. 

Although the wall does not appear to be in need of immediate repair, the twisted sheet piles along 

with the washouts are a matter of concern and the Town may wish to include this wall in a comprehensive 

repair/replacement plan.   

 

Page 117



 
Photo 7.1: Joint between Concrete Sheet Piles 

 

Page 118



Bulkhead 8, 92nd St. and Bay Dr. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   62’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 7’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Concrete Sheet Piles with Batter Piles, H-Piles, 

and Concrete Cap 
 

This bulkhead is comprised of concrete sheet piles with batter piles supporting the sheets on the 

southern half of the bulkhead and H-piles supporting the sheets on the northern end of the bulkhead.  

There are two large metal pipes that belong to FDOT passing over the bulkhead and connecting to a pump 

station on the property.  There is also a drainage outfall pipe that passes through the bulkhead.   

The cap and batter piles are newer than the sheets, and some patch work exists along the 

bulkhead.  There do not appear to be any sunken areas behind the bulkhead, and generally the bulkhead is 

in good condition. 

There are some existing tie back rods that are rusting and exposed to tidal fluctuations (See Photo 

8.1).  It is recommended that these areas and others that are exhibiting rusting be patched with an epoxy 

grout to prolong the useful life of the wall.  Additional repairs should be made to some cracking that can 

be seen in the supporting H-piles (See Photo 8.2). 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 119



 
Photo 8.1: Rusted Tie-back Rod End 

 
Photo 8.2: Cracks Observed in H-piles 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



Bulkhead 9, 93rd St. and Bay Dr. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   35’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 8’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Concrete Sheet Piles with H-Pile Supports and 

Concrete Cap 
 

This bulkhead is comprised of concrete sheet piles with H-piles supporting them.  Like the 

previous bulkhead, the sheets are in good condition.  The cap is relatively new, but displays 

“honeycombing” on its underside (See Photo 9.1), indicating that it was not properly vibrated to allow the 

voids to be filled before the concrete was allowed to cure.  The tieback rods that pass through the H-piles 

have been covered with mortar to prevent corrosion.  Some of this mortar has chipped away, and may 

require replacement. 

Of greater consequence to the structural integrity of the overall bulkhead is the presence of a very 

large vertical shear crack running from the top of the cap to at least the mudline at the bulkhead’s center 

(See Photos 9.2, 9.3).  The bulkhead has split via shearing, and the sections are offset from one another by 

a couple of inches.  Two tieback rods were installed in the cap, one on each side of the crack, as a means 

of repairing the crack, but the crack provides an avenue for soils to wash away from behind the bulkhead.   

Though there are no buildings or other significant sources of dead loading in the vicinity of the 

crack, it was likely caused by temporary overloading, possibly a vehicle driven close to the bulkhead 

edge.  In any case, the crack should either be sealed from both sides or the bulkhead may need to be 

replaced. 

 

Page 121



 
Photo 9.1: Honeycombing in Concrete Cap 

 

 
Photo 9.2:  Vertical Shear Crack in Wall   Photo 9.3: Vertical Shear Crack  

Face and Cap     
 
 
 

Page 122



Bulkhead 10, 94th St. and Bay Dr. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   40’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 6’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Concrete Sheet Piles with H-Piles and Concrete 

Cap  
 

This bulkhead has concrete sheet piles with an older concrete cap and H-piles.  There is a 

drainage outfall in the center of the bulkhead that is overgrown with mollusks.  There doesn’t appear to 

have been any repairs conducted on this bulkhead and the soil behind it is badly washed away.  There is 

some longitudinal cracking along the cap (See Photo 10.1), but there is almost no seepage of rust from the 

reinforcement, so the cracks may be fairly new. 

Efforts were made to excavate a tie rod for inspection.  The rod was found to be encased in a 

thick layer of concrete (See Photo 10.2).  It is assumed that this was part of the bulkhead’s plans as a 

means of protecting the tie rod from corrosion. 

This bulkhead is a candidate for repair, rather than replacement.  An epoxy-grout may be used to 

seal some of the cracks that have appeared in the cap and prolong the bulkhead’s useful life. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



 
Photo 10.1: Longitudinal Cracking Along Cap 

 

 
Photo 10.2: Concrete-Encased Tieback Rod 

 
 
 
 

Page 124



Bulkhead 11, 95th St. and Bay Dr. 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   45’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 7’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Concrete Sheet Piles with King Piles  with 

Concrete Cap 
 

This bulkhead contains king piles supporting concrete sheet piles.  Many of the king piles are 

severely cracked (See Photos 11.1, 11.2) around the tiebacks to the extent of sacrificing structural 

viability.  Much of the steel reinforcement contained within all parts of the bulkhead is corroded with rust 

exiting through cracks in the bulkhead (See Photos 11.1-11.6). 

In some areas, the binder has eroded away from the sheets piles, exposing the aggregate (See 

Photos 11.3, 11.4).  A newer cap was added at some point, but the bottom of the cap has broken away due 

to spalling, exposing the lower layer of steel reinforcement and subjecting it to further corrosion (See 

Photos 11.3, 11.4).  Though the cap appears to be younger than the king piles and sheet piles, there are 

cracks in the cap that run perpendicular to the face and pass all the way through the cap. 

The sheet piles are severely degraded, with the binder having been worn away and the aggregate 

showing in a large area.  There is rust leaking through a number of cracks throughout the bulkhead. 

This bulkhead is highly deteriorated and should be replaced. 

 

 

 

Page 125



 
Photo 11.1: Cracking in King Pile 

 

 
Photo 11.2: Cracking in King Pile, Spalling Cap 

 
 

Page 126



 
Photo 11.3: Degraded Sheet Piles, Spalling Cap 

 

 
Photo 11.4: Cracking in King Pile & Cap, Degraded Sheet Piles 

 

Page 127



 
Photo 11.5: Rusted Steel Reinforcement Leaking Through Wall 

 

 
Photo 11.6: Spall Cracking in Cap, Rusted Reinforcement 

 
 
 
 

Page 128



Bulkhead 12, Surfside Park 
 
Approximate Length of Bulkhead:   250’ 
 
Approximate Height of Bulkhead Above Mudline: 6-10’ 
 
Bulkhead material:  Concrete Sheet Piles with H-Piles and Concrete 

Cap 
 

The section of bulkhead running along Surfside Park is made up of concrete H-piles and concrete 

sheet piles.  The bulkhead is in fair condition with some cracking and rusting present in the sheet piles 

and around the tiebacks.  Some patchwork exists throughout the bulkhead.  Many of the tieback rods pass 

through the bulkhead at abnormal locations (See Photo 12.1), rather than through the conventional center 

of the H-pile supports.  Most of the tieback ends have been covered with mortar that is now chipping 

away (See Photos 12.1, 12.2).  This mortar may need to be chipped away and replaced.  One tieback rod 

was dug up, and appeared to be in good condition, though the area around it had washed away 

considerably (See Photo 12.3). 

The bulkhead is in very close proximity to athletic facilities in the park, including basketball 

courts.  There is perhaps a foot of clearance between the back of the cap and the beginning of the paved 

area.  Within this foot, there are large sink holes that extend underneath the pavement and indicate 

seepage through the wall.  These holes should be filled to prevent further erosion.  The installation of a 

geofabric behind the wall would serve to mitigate this erosion in the future, though it would be impossible 

to excavate the soil behind the bulkhead without disrupting the foundation to park facilities. 

Another apparent failure existing in the bulkhead is a longitudinal crack beneath the central axis 

of the cap that runs nearly the entire length of the bulkhead (See Photos 12.1, 12.2, 12.4-12.6).  This crack 

is likely due to improper coverage of concrete over the steel reinforcement.  As with other areas discussed 

in this report, cracks like this allow rain and saltwater to enter the concrete cap.  When this water reaches 

the steel reinforcement, it causes it to swell and rust.  This rust is present on nearly the entire length of the 

crack.   

At a minimum, the concrete should be broken away from the steel where the longitudinal crack is 

present and the cap should be cast to provide adequate coverage to the steel reinforcement.  This should 

help to prevent saltwater and freshwater intrusion.  It should also be noted that there are areas of spalling 

beneath the Kane Concourse/96th St. Bridge which adjoins Surfside Park bulkhead to the north (See Photo 

12.7).  Some of the concrete has been broken away so much that the entire steel reinforcement cage may 

be seen.  It is assumed that the portion of the bulkhead belongs to FDOT and is not the immediate 

responsibility of the Town of Surfside. 

 
 
 

Page 129



 
Photo 12.1: Longitudinal Spall Cracking in Cap, Rusted Reinforcement, Tieback Not Centered 

 

 
Photo 12.2: Longitudinal Spall Cracking in Cap, Rusted Reinforcement 

 
 
 
 

Page 130



 
Photo 12.3: Excavated Tieback Rod in Good Condition 

 

 
Photo 12.4: Longitudinal Spall Cracking in Cap, Rusted Reinforcement 

 

Page 131



 
Photo 12.5: Longitudinal Spall Cracking in Cap, Rusted Reinforcement 

 

 
Photo 12.6: Longitudinal Spall Cracking in Cap, Rusted Reinforcement 

 

Page 132



 
Photo 12.7: Longitudinal Spall Cracking in Cap beneath FDOT Bridge 

 
 
 
 

Page 133



SECTION THREE 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Most of the bulkheads within the scope of this inspection are due for repair or replacement.  With 

proper design, construction, and maintenance, a seawall or bulkhead can last for up to 50 years, though 

many require replacement as soon as 30 years or even earlier.  It is estimated that many of the bulkheads 

mentioned in this report are 40+ years old and have exhausted their usable life.   

As a means of prioritizing the bulkheads for remediation, the following categories have been 

assigned:  

1. Severe damage to structural integrity and/or aesthetics: 
a. Bulkhead 1: Carlyle Ave. & 88th St. 
b. Bulkhead 5: End of 88th St. on Isle of Biscaya 
c. Bulkhead 11: 95th St. and Bay Dr. 

 
2. Moderate damage to structural integrity and/or aesthetics: 

a. Bulkhead 2: Froude Ave. & 88th St. 
b. Bulkhead 7: 90th St. and Bay Dr. 
c. Bulkhead 9: 93rd St. and Bay Dr. 
d. Bulkhead 12: Surfside Park 

 
3. Minor damage to structural integrity and/or aesthetics: 

a. Bulkheads 3 & 4: 88th St. Bridge 
b. Bulkhead 6: Irving Ave. & Bay Dr. 
c. Bulkhead 8: 92nd St. and Bay Dr. 
d. Bulkhead 10: 94th and Bay Dr. 

 
 

Page 134



SECTION FOUR 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 

 

Measures should be taken to replace most of the bulkheads.  Under ideal circumstances, the Town 

of Surfside should consider a comprehensive replacement plan for the bulkheads to reduce shared costs 

for construction items such as mobilization.  If the cost to repair a bulkhead that is 40+ years old are half 

the cost of replacing the wall entirely, and a repair will afford the town 10 years of useable life while the 

replacement will provide 50 years of useable life, it is in the Town’s best long-term interest to replace the 

bulkheads.  Assuming that the Town chooses to replace all bulkheads within the scope of this 

investigation except for the two beneath the 88th Street Bridge, which are recommended for repair, it is 

estimated that approximately $960,000 in construction costs will be needed to complete the construction 

of the required replacements.  This quote is based upon an average unit cost of $1,200/LF provided by 

two local marine contractors. 

It is understood that the Town may wish to replace only the bulkheads in the worst condition and 

make repairs to extend whatever usable life the remaining bulkheads may possess.  As an alternative to 

replacing all of the bulkheads and based upon the categorization described in the summary above, the 

following recommendations are made: 

 
1. Where severe damage to the structural integrity of the bulkhead has been observed, it is 

recommended that the bulkhead be replaced entirely. 
 

2. Where the structural integrity of the bulkhead appears to be in salvageable condition but damage 
is moderate, it is recommended that the bulkhead be either repaired or replaced. 

 
3. Where the bulkhead exhibits minor cracking or degradation, it is recommended that the bulkhead 

be repaired. 
 
 

Page 135



 
 
Title: Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan Support 
 
Objective: To approve the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan Support Resolution. 
 
Consideration: The Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan (CERP) was developed in the 1990s 

with widespread public interest and support. Many public meetings were held and 
thousands of people provided input into the final plan – resulting in a widely 
supported plan that balances many competing interests. 
 
In 2000, Congress authorized CERP, the largest environmental restoration effort in 
history. CERP will enhance Everglades wetlands and associated lakes, rivers, and bays 
in the 16-county region of south Florida. CERP projects will capture and store much of 
the 1.7 billion gallons of water a day currently lost to the Atlantic Ocean and Gulf of 
Mexico, to revitalize south Florida’s natural environment. 
 
Both the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE) and the South Florida Water 
Management District (SFWMD) are working to centralize planning of four projects at 
the heart of the restoration and they are seeking public input and support before 
requesting Congressional approval of their Project Implementation Report for the 
Central Everglades Planning Process.  Through this resolution, the Town of Surfside 
will demonstrate its commitment to and support of CERP. 

Page 136

snovoa
Typewritten Text
5D

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9A

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9C



Page 143

snovoa
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "1"



Page 144

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



95th
 S

treet - C
o

llin
s A

ve. -
S

u
rfsid

e
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 S

U
R

F
S

ID
E

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

07-30-2012 Base

0'16'48' 32'

Page 145

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 146

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9D



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9G



Page 155



Page 156

snovoa
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "A"

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 157



Page 158

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9H

snovoa
Typewritten Text



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



Page 495



Page 496



Page 497



Page 498



Page 499



Page 500



Page 501



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506



Page 507



Page 508



Page 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Page 520



Page 521



Page 522



Page 523



Page 524



Page 525



Page 526



Page 527



Page 528



Page 529



Page 530



Page 531



Page 532



Page 533



Page 534



Page 535



Page 536



Page 537



Page 538



Page 539



Page 540



Page 541



Page 542



Page 543



Page 544



Page 545



Page 546



Page 547



Page 548



Page 549



Page 550



Page 551



Page 552



Page 553



Page 554



Page 555



Page 556



Page 557



Page 558



Page 559



Page 560



Page 561



Page 562



Page 563



Page 564



Page 565



Page 566



Page 567



Page 568



Page 569



Page 570



Page 571



Page 572



Page 573



Page 574



Page 575



Page 576



Page 577



Page 578



Page 579



Page 580



Page 581



Page 582



Page 583



Page 584



Page 585



Page 586



Page 587



Page 588



Page 589



Page 590



Page 591



Page 592



Page 593



Page 594



Page 595



Page 596



Page 597



Page 598



Page 599



Page 600



Page 601



Page 602



Page 603



Page 604



Page 605



Page 606



Page 607



Page 608



Page 609



Page 610



Page 611



Page 612



Page 613



Page 614



Page 615



Page 616



Page 617



Page 618



Page 619



Page 620



Page 621



Page 622



Page 623



Page 624



Page 625



Page 626



Page 627



Page 628



Page 629



Page 630



Page 631



Page 632



Page 633



Page 634



Page 635



Page 636



Page 637



Page 638



Page 639



Page 640



Page 641



Page 642



Page 643



Page 644



Page 645



Page 646



Page 647



Page 648



Page 649



Page 650



Page 651



Page 652



Page 653



Page 654



Page 655



Page 656



Page 657



Page 658



Page 659


	1G - Presentation to Commissioner Michelle Kligman
	3A - Minutes - July 10, 2012
	3A - Minutes - July 17, 2012
	3B - Budget to Actual 
	3C - Points of Light
	3E - Projects Progress Report
	4A1 - Amended Legislation to Planning & Zoning/Design Review Board Requirements
	4A2 - Fence Ordinance
	4A3 - Adopt an Ordinance Governing Height of Ceiling and other Requirements in Parking Facilities with Elevator Lifts
	5A - MOU for the Island Community Initiative Automatic License Plate Reader Project
	5B - FY 11/12 Proposed Mid-Year Budget Amendment Resolution 
	5C - Sewall Inspection/ Grant Funding Opportunities
	5D - Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan Support
	9A - Deferral of Certain Items if a Commissioner is Absent
	9C - Selection of Design for 95th Street Project 
	9D - Miami Dade Library System 
	9G - Public Information Campaign for Charter Amendment Election
	9H - Water/Sewer/Storm Drainage Project History and Status



